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Glenfarg Public Hall. 

LENFARG, the pretty little village on the Ochils, has long 
been known as an attractive place of residence and summer 
resort. Its pure exhilarating air, its variety of roads (there are 
six leading out of it), the grand views from the surrounding 

hills, its high elevation above sea-level (averaging about 500 feet), and 
other advantages combine to make it a charming. place.  Within recent 
years the residents have shown considerable energy and enterprise in its 
improvement and development. A demand has now arisen, especially 
among the young men and women, for the reconstruction of the ante-
rooms of the Public Hall. This demand has been so strong and insistent 
of late that the committee has felt it necessary to do something to meet 
it, and hence this Bazaar. 

The PUBLIC HALL, which is a well-built structure capable of 
holding 250 people, was originally the public school. In 1906, however, 
the School Board erected a modern school on a more extensive site (at a 
cost of £2,600), and advertised the old building for sale. Offers of 
purchase were received from certain parties who intended to turn the 
building into dwelling-house. As this would have left the village 
without a Hall for public meetings (which had always been held the old 
school), the Board, of which the writer happened to be chairman, was 
unwilling to sell for such a purpose. Meantime, a number of public-
spirited citizens formed themselves into a committee for the purchase of 
the building as a Public Hall. This committee consisted of Mr. Charles 
Mackarsie, convener, with Rev. J. W. Jack, Messers. Peter Anderson, 
James E. Bett, William Burnie, Alexander Deas, Sen., William Deas, D. 
R. Douglas, Duncan Macgregor, J.P., Robert Robertson, James Whyte, 
and John Wilson.  In November, 1900, the building was handed over to 
this committee for the sum of £101. As, however, it had neither 
platform nor suitable seating nor ante-rooms of any kind, a further sum 
of £120 was needed for these additions. The total sum (£220) was 
borrowed at 4½  per cent. from Mr. William Deas, on the signed 
guarantee of all the other members of committee individually and 
jointly, and on the security of the property. Since the death of Mr. Deas 
in 1918, the loan has been continued by a friend of Glenfarg, through 
whose kindness and generosity no interest has so far been payable. 
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At the first meeting of the committee after the acquisition of the 
building it was agreed to have a Bazaar “sometime” to clear off the 
debt. Owing, however, to other public efforts being required at the time 
(for the golf course, bowling green, etc.), the project was allowed to 
lapse. It was revived m the summer of 1914, when an active Bazaar 
committee was appointed. In July of that year, a large social. meeting of 
the public was held in the Hall in connection with the preliminary 
arrangements.  Unfortunately, the catastrophe of the war next month, 
and its continuance for so many years, prevented this new effort from 
taking shape. As a result, the debt still remains, for recent years have 
not afforded any opportunity for its removal. This has been due to the 
number of other public needs, such as Nurses' House, Tennis Courts, 
etc. 

Though an endeavour to clear it off might have been attempted this 
year, strong representations were made to the committee that the 
reconstruction of the ante-rooms, with modern sanitation, was a matter 
demanding attention first, and without delay. The want of a gentlemen's 
room, the inadequacy of the present ladies' room, and the unsuitability 
of the kitchen have caused such serious discomfort and inconvenience 
at large public dances and social meetings that the necessity of 
reconstruction at the earliest possible time has been forced on the 
committee. It is evident that what was considered satisfactory long ago 
falls short of what is expected in these modern times. As the 
reconstruction will be an undoubted benefit to the general public, the 
committee would ask all who have the public interests at heart to 
support the undertaking to the utmost of their power, and to crown it 
with success. 

The committee, though not publicly appointed, is nevertheless a 
public one, acting entirely in the public interest, and supplying an 
undoubted public want. It is a public committee in the same sense as the 
others in the village, and deserves the hearty support of all citizens. It is 
forbidden by its constitution to receive any profits or take any of the 
proceeds for itself; and it holds the title-deeds of the building in its own 
possession, under trustees of its own, for the sole benefit of the public. 
The writer, who is the only one left of the original committee, can 
testify that the members have striven constantly to satisfy public need. 
Mr. Charles Mackarsie, the first chairman, was succeeded in 1912 by 
Mr. Alexander Deas, Sen.  On the death of the latter in 1914, his 
brother, Mr. William Deas, was elected to the position. In 1918, when 
the last named passed away, the writer was appointed on the motion of 
Mr. James Whyte, seconded by Mr. J. Morison. Successive secretaries 
(and treasurers) have been Messrs. William Burnie, J. Coutts Morrison, 
M.A., A. A. Hutton, and H. H. Bonar, O.B.E. Since Mr. Bonar's 
departure from the district, the chairman has been acting as hon. 
secretary and treasurer pro tem.  The auditors are Messrs. Richard 
Hume and D. G. Landsborough.
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Current expenses in the case of a public hall are large, including 
rates and taxes (both owners' and occupiers'), various insurances 
(including not only fire, but employers' liability, public risk, etc.), 
heating, lighting, repairs (often heavy), caretaker's salary, piano-tuning, 
theatre license, etc. The only income is from the letting of the hall for 
meetings or gatherings, and this is no more than sufficient to meet the 
large 'expenditure. Taking the average income and expenditure of the 
last three years, there is actually a deficit of over £5 on the working of 
the Hall, as is evident from the following table:- 

 Income. Expenditure. 
1926, £25 17 6 £35 11 8 
I927, 52 15 0 62 16 5 
192S, 46 0 5 36 11 11 
 £124 17 6 £130 3 0 

The larger expenditure in 1927 was owing to the purchase of piano, and 
the larger income the same year was due to a donation of £6 10.s, 
kindly given by Mr. and Mrs. Charles Lumsden from the proceeds of a 
whist drive. 

The charges for the letting of the Hall are necessarily higher than 
they would be if meetings were more numerous, They were definitely 
fixed as follows on 6th March 1929, after much careful deliberation by 
the committee:- 

Local meetings, where there is no charge for admission. such as 
Ratepayers' meetings, Lectures, etc., 15/- 

Meetings other than local (e.g.. political. etc.). where there is no 
charge 20/- 

Concert (alone). Entertainment (alone). Dance (alone), or Whist Drive 
(alone) 20/- 

Concert and Dance. Entertainment and Dance, or Whist Drive and 
Dance 25/- 

Bazaar or Sale of Work (alone) 20/- 
Same. with Dance or Concert 25/- 
Picnic Parties, in case of wet weather 25/- 
Flower Show 25/- 
Same. with Dance 30/- 
Dances held for private profit 40/- 
Christmas. New Year. and Little Dunning Dances 40/- 
V.A.D. meetings. per night 5/- 
Use of piano (parties are not allowed to bring their own piano) 7/6 
Extra fee where dramatic piece is included in programme 5/- 
Use of ante-room for committee and similar small meetings 5/- 

Saturday night dances are not encouraged, but in all cases they are required 
to cease and parties leave the Hall by 11.30 p.m. The extra fee chargeable 
where dramatic pieces arc given is due to the fact that the committee has a 
license of £2 12s 6d. to pay annually under the Theatre Act of 1843. 

In the cast of the reconstruction of the ante-rooms, it is clear that the 
committee has no funds to spare for such a special effort, and it would 
therefore confidently appeal to all friends to make the forthcoming Bazaar a 
success by securing goods for the various stalls, and bringing as many 
buyers as possible on the day of sale. 

Here is a splendid chance for securing Xmas presents to send to friends! 
HELP WITH GOODS! COME AND BUY!
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No. 1 

 
Stall Holders: 

Mrs. CAMPBELL, Arngask Manse, Glenfarg. 
Mrs: HUNTER, Arngask House, Glenfarg 

Assistants: 
Miss.Cuinningham, Rathlaw, Glenfarg. 
Alice Hunter, Arngask House, Glenfarg. 
Miss McArthur, Old Fargie, Glenfarg. 
Miss Elsie Robertson, Arngask Farm, Glenfarg. 
Mrs. Wallace, Duncrievie, Glenfarg. 

A large variety of useful and ornamental article, will be found at this 
double Stall, and all at moderate prices.  It should have the patronage of 
every visitor to the Bazaar. Are you sending off any presents to friends 
this Christmas time? Here is your chance of securing something good. It 
will be a fair exchange for your money, and no robbery. 

 
 
No. 2 

 
Stallholder: 

Mrs. BEATH, Fernhall, Glenfarg. 

Assistants: 
Mrs. Dan. Eadie, Linnbank, Glenfarg. 
Miss Graham, Easter Fordel, Glenfarg. 
Mrs. Charles A. Marshall, Station Road, Glenfarg. 

No one in Glenfarg, or out of it, should want for a Christmas dinner, 
so long as Rabbits, Fowls, and other produce fresh from the fields and 
farm-houses of the district are on sale here. In addition to selling, the 
stallholders will tell yon all about Farms and Poultry Yards. Come and 
see. 
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Public Hall Committee. 
 

Rev. J. W. Jack, M.A., J.P. (Chairman), with Rev. James 
Campbell; M.A., Mr. Alexander Deas, Mr. Richard Hume, 
Mr. W. C. Hunter, W.S., J.P., of Arngask, Mr. D. G. Lands-
borough, Mr. J. Morison, of Scarhead, and Mr. J. A. Wallace, 
J.P., of Duncrievie. 

We give here a brief statement of the various other public Societies 
and Clubs in Glenfarg, with list of Committees up to date. They appear 
in alphabetical order. Thanks arc due to the various secretaries for much 
of the information given- 

BOWLING CLUB. 

This club originated on 17th May, 1895, when a public meeting was 
held in the Institute to consider the matter. The chair was taken by Mr. 
Duncan Macgregor, J.P., late proprietor of Arngask. A bowling green 
had already been constructed by the “Village Committee,” a body 
which existed under the convenership of Mr. William Deas for the 
improvement of Glenfarg, and the public meeting agreed to form itself 
into a club and take over the green. Rules and a constitution were 
submitted by Rev. J. W. Jack, and approved of, and the first committee 
was appointed as follows: Mr. D. Macgregor, president; Mr. John 
Wilson, vice-president; Mr. Alex. Anderson, hon. secretary and 
treasurer; Mr. P. MacBean, ranger; with Messrs. Peter Anderson, Jun., 
Alex. Dalrymple, Alex. Deas, Jun., William Deas, Thomas Drummond, 
Jun., Alex. Hair, and A. J. Morris. The membership has increased 
within the last few years, and now numbers about 50. In 1927 the club 
joined the Perthshire Bowling Association, and in 1929 the Scottish 
Bowling Association. This year .(1929) the club's representative, Mr. 
John McGlashan, won the Perthshire Single Handed Championship, and 
the club was also “runner-up” in the Perthshire Club Championship. . 
Committee:- Messrs. J. Morison, of Scarhead, James A. Wallace, J.P., 
of Duncrievie, and William G. Piper, of Letham. hon. presidents; Mr. 
W. S. Robertson, president; Mr. William Taylor,. vice-president; Mr. 
Robert Bell, hon. secretary and treasurer; Mr. A. Scotland, ranger; with 
Messrs. William Barr, Peter Beveridge, David Brown, John Keay, and 
John McGlashan. 
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CURLING CLUB. 

This club was instituted in 1873 under the patronage of Major-
General Kirkland of Fordel and other local proprietors. It consisted of 
24 members, who soon became enthusiastic and highly skilled curlers. 
In 1878 it was admitted into the Loch Leven privilege of the Royal 
Caledonian. Club, and this gave it the privilege of competing in any 
match in the Province and in 411 national competitions. Its original 
name was Arngask Curling Club, but in 1907 this was changed to the 
Glenfarg Curling Club. A valuable silver cup was presented to the club 
by, the late Mr. Fergus McLelland, Glasgow. This, with the Quaich and 
other medals, causes some excitement among the members at the 
annual competitions. During the season 1928-29 the silver cup 
belonging to the Loch Leven Province was won for the year by the club. 
At present the club has a membership of 44, and is under the patronage 
of Messrs. James A. Wallace, J.F., of Duncrievie, and William G. Piper, 
of Letham. Committee:- Major General Marindin, C B., D.S.O., hon. 
president; Mr. Charles Lumsden, president; Mr. William Murray, of 
Rossieochil. vice-president; Mr. D. Deas, hon. secretary and treasurer; 
with Mr. J. Smith Connell, Capt. Hopkinson, Mr. James Ireland, and 
Mr. David Stewart. Representative Members - Messrs. Charles 
Lumsden and William Murray. 

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE. 

This committee was formed at a public meeting on 23rd April, 
1925, for the purpose of aiding Glenfarg as a place of residence and 
summer resort. Its constitution gives it power to adopt all means 
necessary to improve the place, to aid house-letting, to supply suitable 
recreation for visitors, and otherwise to promote the proper growth and 
attractiveness of Glenfarg. It consists of not more than nine members, 
all of whom retire triennially at a public meeting called for the purpose, 
but are eligible for re-election. The first committee consisted of Rev. J. 
W. Jack, chairman, and Mr. W. W. Virtue, hon. secretary, along with 
Messrs. Robert Beath, Charles Henderson. Richard Hume, John Keay, 
Charles A. Marshall, and David L. Smart. At the first triennial public 
meeting, held on 27th April, 1928, a report of progress was submitted, 
and the committee was unanimously re-elected, except that Mr. James 
A. Wallace, J.P., of Duncrievie, was appointed in room of Mr. Virtue 
(deceased), and Mr. Charles Henderson was appointed hon. secretary 
and treasurer. 

The first enterprise of the committee was to put down (in 1926) two 
excellent blaes tennis-courts, which cost about £500. It owns the courts 
and ground, and also all the seats on the various roads just outside the 
village. Lately, it has put down several new seats. It is taking the 
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initiative in drainage, electric light, and other improvements in the 
place; and when Parish Councils are abolished (on 16th May, 1930), it 
will probably exercise a still larger share. in public affairs, as being the 
only committee in the village regularly elected by the public. 

DISTRICT NURSING ASSOCIATION. 

This Association owes its origin to the existence of a Fund collected 
in the district during the war for Red Cross purposes. After the 
Armistice, the Red Cross authorities allowed the surplus remaining to 
be used for local nursing. The Association has thus been in existence 
since 1919, and has all along continuously provided and maintained a 
District Nurse, whose services are much appreciated.  In addition to 
building a house for the nurse and meeting all the annual charges of a 
nurse's maintenance, it has succeeded in raising a reserve fund, thus 
affording greater security. At the same time, it is wholly dependent on 
voluntary support and on certain grants which it may earn from the 
Health Authorities. Applications for the services of the nurse may be 
made to any member of the committee or directly to the nurse.  
Committee:- Mrs. 

Hunter, convener; Mrs. McKarsie, vice-convener; Mrs. Oastler, 
Ingleston, hon. secretary and treasurer; with Mrs. Campbell (Arngask), 
Mrs. Connell, Mrs. R. Hume, Mrs. McArthur, Miss Morison, and Miss 
Jessie Seaton. 

GIRL GUIDES AND BOY SCOUTS. 

The aim of the Girl Guides organization is to develop good 
citizenship among girls by forming their character and training them in 
habits of usefulness, obedience, and self-reliance. This is done by 
games and activities which really appeal to the girl. Any girl between 
11 and 16 can become a Girl Guide. Over 16 she has the chance of 
becoming a Ranger, over 18 a Lieutenant, and over 21 a Captain. The 
Glenfarg movement was commenced in January, 1925, by Miss 
Marindin, Fordel. The present Captain is Miss E. Marindin, and the 
Company, though small, is very keen. There is also a District Guide 
Committee of about a dozen ladies. Mrs. Douglas (Miss Pullar), Bridge 
of Earn, is the District Commissioner. 

The Boy Scouts' Company in Glenfarg was formed about the same 
time. The Scout movement is generally supposed to be. militaristic, but 
it is rather a civic one, intended to train boys in civic life and duties, and 
in the development of good character. The present Glenfarg 
Scoutmaster is Mr. Raymond McIntosh, Berryhill.
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GOLF CLUB. 
The club originated in 1903, when eight villagers interested in golf, 

formed themselves into a committee, with Rev. J. W. Jack as convener. 
At a public meeting held on 18th December of that year, the committee 
was given authority to secure ground. At a second public meeting on 
14th March next year, it was unanimously agreed to proceed to the 
formation of a club, as, ground had been ,obtained on Easterton estate. 
The following were elected office-bearers:- Mr. William Deas, 
president; Mr. Charles Mackarsie, vice-president; and Rev. J.W. Jack, 
captain and hon. secretary. The money required for the making of the 
course was borrowed from the bank and members of committee, and 
was repaid with 5 per cent. interest after a few years. The course, which 
is a nine-hole one, and covers about 70 acres of ground overlooking 
Glenfarg village, was laid out by Willie Auchterlonie of St. Andrews, 
and was opened on 4th June, 1904, in presence of a large gathering by 
Sir (then Mr.) R. R. Simpson, W.S., of Edinburgh. It has the great 
advantage of being on the health-giving Ochils, and is regarded as an 
excellent inland course, with specially good greens, most of them of an 
undulating nature. 

The Roman eagle once did soar  
Atower thae hills in Rome's great power, 

But noo ye hear lood cries o' “Fore.” 
It's gowf amang the Ochils. 

Committee of Management:- Captain, Rev. James Campbell, M.A.; 
vice-captain, Mr. D. S. Landsborough; hon. secretary and treasurer, 
Rev. J. W. Jack, M.A.; with Messrs. Alistair S. Forbes, A. Hickson, and 
Richard Hume. There is also a Greens Committee, with Mr. A. 
Hickson, convener; and a Ladies' Tea Committee, consisting of Mrs. 
Mackarsie, convener, along with the wives of the members of the 
Management Committee. Greenkeeper, Mr. John Keay. 

HORTICULTURAL SOCIETY. 
This society was started in 1871, under the patronage of the late 

Major-General Kirkland, of Fordel, and others.  The principal 
organizers were Messrs. John Skinner, Summerfield, and Alexander 
Dalrymple, Glenfarg. After a few years it lapsed, but was resuscitated in 
1898. It fell into abeyance again for a time, and was revived in 1920 
under Mr. H. H. Bonar, O.B.E., president, and Mr. Alexander Deas, 
vice-president. It holds an excellent flower-show every August in the 
village, when numerous prizes are given. Committee:- Mr. James A. 
Wallace, J.P., president; Mr. David L. Smart, vice-president; Mr. John 
.Keay, hon. secretary; Mr. George Paton, hon. treasurer; with Messrs. 
Alexander Deas (chairman), Robert Buist, James Ireland, Thomas 
Miller, James Patrick, James M. Robertson, Jun., George Short, George 
Smith, and Alexander Thomson.
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LIBRARY. 
The Library (in the institute) is now under the auspices of the Social 

Club and the Perthshire Education Authority. The latter body, in 
connection with its Rural Library Scheme, sends periodically 
consignments of new books. The Library is free to all residenters in 
Arngask Parish. The librarian, Mr. John Keay, is in attendance every. 
Monday from 7 to 8 p.m. 

SKATING CLUB. 
This club was formed' about twenty years ago, when the “Village 

Committee,” under the convenership of Mr. William Deas. banked up 
and made the present pond with funds collected publicly. A few years 
later, during some winters of mild weather, the club Lapsed, but within 
recent years has been re-established. It supplies an excellent winter 
pastime to the young people. President, Mr. Charles Lumsden; Hon. 
secretary and treasurer, Mr. James M. Robertson, Jun. 

SOCIAL CLUB. 
This club originated in 1920 as an outcome of the war. It was first a 

“Red Triangle” Club, under the Y.M.C.A., but in 1922 became the 
“Social” Club. It has the use of the Institute on Mondays, Wednesdays, 
and Fridays, from 6 to 11 p.m.  Billiards, cards, draughts, and other 
games are played, and social meetings are held, occasionally in 
conjunction with the Women's Rural. Committer:- Rev. James 
Campbell, M.A., president; Mr. Andrew Hain, vice-president; Mr. 
William Brunton, hon. secretary and treasurer; with Messrs. Robert 
Bell, John R. Keay, D. P. Nicoll, James M. Robertson, Jun., Charles 
Robertson, Alexander Smith, and John Shorthouse. 

TENNIS CLUB. 
The Tennis Club was formed on 29th March, 1926, when the 

Development Committee, which had provided the courts (at a cost of 
about £500), drew up the constitution and rules. These provide for the 
Chairman and Secretary of the Development Committee being trustees 
of the whole property, and for the business of the Club being carried on 
by a committee of not more than eight, of which four shall be chosen by 
the Development Committee from its own members. The courts, two in 
number, are among the finest in Perthshire.  The Club has been a 
marked success.  Its membership has steadily increased, and now 
numbers over fifty, and its income meets its expenditure. The 
subscriptions are the same as those of the Golf Club, viz., £1 annually 
for gentlemen and 10/6 for ladies, and there are also daily, weekly, or 
monthly tickets. Committee:- Rev. J. W. Jack, M.A., president; 
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Mr. Charles A. Marshall, hon. secretary and treasurer, with Messrs. 
Richard Hume and Charles Henderson (these four from the 
Development Committee), and the following four from the Club, viz.,: 
Mrs. Fowlis, Miss ,Graham, Miss Helen Myles, and Miss Alice 
Sanderson. Court-keeper, Mr. John Black. 

V.A.D. (VOLUNTARY AID DETACHMENT). 
This organization in our village is a branch of the Perthshire 

V.A.D., which is administered by the Territorial Army Association of 
the county. It was originally formed as a Red Cross Association at a 
public meeting in the Institute on 12th January, 1911, when Red Cross 
addresses were given by Mr. Norman J. Nasmyth, J.P., Rev. J. W. Jack, 
M.A., Miss Simpson, and others. The result was the enrolment by 
Colonel Sloan, County Director, of 17 men. First Aid lectures were 
given by Dr. Gibson, Milnathort. Women's and men's joint classes 
followed, and a women's section was then formed. Under the Glenfarg 
Detachment, the members, both men and women, have the benefit of 
ambulance lectures, home-nursing lectures, and various practices. Miss 
Simpson, Blairstrine, and Miss Eunice Marindin act as hon. secretaries.  
Committee:- Rev. James Campbell, M.A., Mr. Alexander Deas, Mr. 
Charles Henderson, Mrs. Marindin, and Mr. and Mrs J. A. Wallace. 

W.R.I. (WOMEN'S RURAL INSTUTE). 
This organization was formed in the village in May, 1918, under the 

presidency of Mrs. W. C. Hunter, of Arngask. Its aims are those of 
other Institutes, viz., to develop initiative and latent talent; to bring 
experts to lecture and demonstrate; and to promote social intercourse 
and recreation among women of all classes. It has now a membership of 
75. Demonstrations are numerous and competition is keen. The social 
side has been largely developed. In this connection a successful “Burns 
Night” is held annually in combination with the Social Club. Halloween 
customs have also been revived, and every Xmas time the children of 
the parish are given a Xmas tree, with Santa Claus in attendance. A 
Carnival Fancy Dress Dance was instituted four years ago, and has been 
held annually since with great success. Dramatic classes have been 
taken up this season for members who are willing to travel to Perth for 
tuition.  Pottery Painting, 

Basketry, Raffia, and other enterprises are also engaged in. The 
organization altogether has proved itself of much service to the 
community. Committee:—Mrs. Marindin, hon. president; Miss 
Graham, president; Mrs Campbell (Arngask), vice-president; Mrs. 
Richard Hume, hon. secretary; Mrs. C. Marshall, hon. treasurer; with 
Mrs. Henry Deas, Mrs. Harley, Mrs. Keddie, Mrs. Laing, and Miss Eve 
Marindin.
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Parish Council.--James A. Wallace (chairman), with Messrs. Robert Beath, 
Alexander Deas. D. G. Landsborough, Charles Lumsden, Capt. J. A. Lilburne 
Hopkinson. and Major-General Arthur H. Marindin. D.S.O. Clerk - Blair 
Murphie. Parish Council Office, Milnathort. 

Representative on District Committee - Mr. Alexander Deas.  Parish. Councils are 
to be transferred to County Councils on 16th May 1930.  

County Councillor.--Mr. Norman J. Nasmyth. Glenfarg House. Glenfarg.  
County Medical Officer. Dr. D., J. McLeish: M.A.. B.Sc., M.D., D.P.H. County 

Buildings. Perth. 
County Sanitary Inspector.- Mr. Robert McNicull, County Buildings, Perth.  
County Road Surveyor.- Mr. W. J. Noel Bryce; Feus Road, Perth. 
District Clerk. Treasurer, and Collector.- Mr. Macnab, J.P. 7 High Street. Perth. 
Clerk of Health Insurance for County.- Mr. T. B. Marshall. County Buildings, Perth. 
Representative on Education Authority.- Mr. J. F. Smith. J.P. Strathearn, Bridge of 

Earn. 
Local Representative on School Management.- Mr. Charles Lumsden. Lomond 

Hotel. 
Local Justices of the Peace.- Mr. William C. Hunter. W.S., Arngask House ; Rev. 

.1. W. Jack. MA., Manse Glenfarg; Mr. James A. Wallace (ex officio). 
Registrar of Births, Marriages, and Deaths. -Mr. Jn. Keay. Melville Terrace.  
Clergymen.- Rev. James Campbell, M.A., Arngask Church: Rev. J. W. Jack. M.A.,  
Glenfarg Church. Service at 12 noon in both churches, and also 6 p.m. in the latter. 
Headmaster..- Alistair Henderson. B.Sc.. Schoolhouse. Assistant Teachers- Miss 

Ames. M.A. (Juniors), and Miss Black (Infants). 
District Nurse.-  Miss Glass. Nurses Cottage, Glenfarg. 
Medical Men.-  Dr. Hope Anderson. Kinross; Dr. Cairns. Kinross: Dr. McIntosh. 

Kinross: Dr. Alison. Milnathort. All reached by 'phone. 
Parish Medical Officer- Dr. Hope Anderson, Kinross. 
Veterinary Surgeon.- Mr. John Hepburn. Milnathort. 
Water and Lighting Committee (Parish Council).- Messrs. Alexander Deas, 
D. G. Landsborough. Charles Lumsden. and James A. Wallace. These act along with 

representatives from the Perth District Committee.  
Postmaster.- Mr. Charles Henderson. Despatches-10 a.m.. and 6.30 p.m.: deliveries 

commence 8.40 a.m. and 0.10 p.m.  Sundays, nil. Post office is shut at 1 p.m. 
on Thursdays, when nearest Telegraph Office is Railway Station. Perth. 

Carrier from Perth.- Mr. Dan Deas, Churchill. Glenfarg. From St. John's Square. 
Tuesday and Friday afternoons. 

Bank.- -Sub-office of Bank of Scotland. at Balinloan every Monday from 10.30 a.m. 
to 12.30. 

Shopkeepers' Half Holiday.-- Thursdays. 
Population of Parish (1921 census).- 961 : Valuation (1927-28)- £23,716 3s. 5d: 

Glenfarg Water Rate - 1s. per £1 ; Lighting Rate -5d. per £1. 
Improvements. Public drainage and electric light are coming shortly. Important 

improvements are also intimated by the Perth District. Committee. A sum of 
£23,425 is to be spent on the Edinburgh Road from Glenfarg to Bridge of Earn. 
The road is to be widened, the corner at Glenfarg Hotel enlarged. the bridge at 
Fildie widened. and a new bridge made at Baiglie. 
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